
 
  
  
 

   
 

  
 

          

     

    

      

             

        

              

     

                

    

                 

       

        

                  

  

   

   

     

        

  

     

     

  
 

 
   

 
      

 
     

 
    

   
 
       

   
 
       

 
   

 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
CITIZENS MULTIMODAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

MEETING AGENDA 

Wednesday, February 2, 2022 at 5:30 pm
MEETING TO BE HELD VIA ZOOM ONLY 

I. This meeting will be held via Zoom in accordance with Assembly Bill 253 (2021). There will be no physical location. 

II. The committee may combine two or more agenda items for consideration and/or may remove an item from the agenda or delay 

discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. 

III. Members of the public may attend the meeting via Zoom by registering at https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_W-

APDZl8T4i49bUVcD1HoQ. Registered persons will receive an email from Zoom with a link to the meeting and instructions on how to join the meeting. 

Registered persons should follow the instructions from Zoom to join the meeting.  Registered persons can participate by telephone or video via Zoom. To 

provide public comment during the meeting via Zoom, please make sure your computer or device has a working microphone. Use the “Chat” feature to 

submit a request to make a comment. When the time comes to make public comments, you will be invited to speak. 

IV. If you cannot register via Zoom but want to attend the meeting via telephone, please call +1 669-900-6833 (WEBINAR id: 844 7043 

0034; webinar passcode: 595900) on the day of the meeting.  If you wish to provide public comment during the meeting, please contact Jacqueline 

Maldanado at (775) 332-2148 prior to 4:00 p.m. on the day before the meeting and provide the telephone number you will be calling from as well as the 

item(s) you would like to comment on. When the time comes to make public comments, you will be invited to speak. 

V. Public comment is limited to three minutes per person. 

VI. Members of the public may also provide public comment in advance of the meeting by one of the following methods: (1) submitting 

comments via online Public Comment Form (www.rtcwashoe.com/about/contact/contact-form/); or (2) emailing comments to: 

rtcpubliccomments@rtcwashoe.com. Comments received prior to 4:00 p.m. on the day before the meeting will be forwarded to members of the committee 

and included in the minutes of the meeting. 

VII. The supporting materials for the meeting can be found at www.rtcwashoe.com. If you need to request a copy of the supporting 

materials, please contact Jacqueline Maldanado by phone at (775) 332-2148 by email at jmaldonado@rtcwashoe.com, or by mail or in person at 1105 

Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502. 

VIII. RTC staff will make reasonable efforts to assist and accommodate individuals with disabilities. Please contact Jacqueline Maldanado 

at (775) 332-2148 in advance so that arrangements can be made. 

ITEM 1 Approval of Agenda (For Possible Action) 

ITEM 2 Public Comment - please read paragraph III near the top of this page 

ITEM 3 Approval of the December 1, 2021 Meeting Minutes (For Possible Action) 

ITEM 4 Acknowledge Receipt of a Presentation on the Nevada Sustainable Transportation 
Funding Study and Advisory Working Group (Information Only) 

ITEM 5 Recommend Approval of Amendment 1 to the FY 2022 – FY 2023 Unified Planning Work 
Program (UPWP) (For Possible Action) 

ITEM 6 Acknowledge Receipt of a Presentation on Nevada Department of Transportation 
(NDOT) Process Used from the One Nevada Plan to Arrive at the Current Statewide 
Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) (For Possible Action) 

https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_W-APDZl8T4i49bUVcD1HoQ
https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_W-APDZl8T4i49bUVcD1HoQ
http://www.rtcwashoe.com/about/contact/contact-form/
mailto:rtcpubliccomments@rtcwashoe.com
http://www.rtcwashoe.com/
mailto:jmaldonado@rtcwashoe.com


   
 

 
      

 
     

 
     

 
    

 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

          

ITEM 7 Acknowledge Receipt of a Presentation on the Mt. Rose Highway Corridor Study (For 
Possible Action) 

ITEM 8 Member Announcements/Agenda Items for Future CMAC Meetings (For Possible Action) 

ITEM 9 RTC/RIDE/ACCESS Staff Items (Informational Only) 

ITEM 10 Public Comment - pursuant to paragraph III under Public Notice near the top of this page 

ITEM 11 Adjournment (For Possible Action) 

The Committee may take action on any item noted for possible action 

Posting locations:  RTC, 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV; RTC website: www.rtcwashoe.com, State website: https://notice.nv.gov/ 

http://www.rtcwashoe.com/
https://notice.nv.gov/


 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
     
     
               
     
                       
   
 

  
              
              
  

 
 
    
    
   
    

 
 
     
     
 

 
   

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
    

 
   

 
  

 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
CITIZENS MULTIMODAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

Meeting Minutes 
Wednesday, December 1, 2021 

Members Present 

Mark Miranda Benjamin Miller 
Dora Martinez Matthew Boog 
Paul Malikowski David Giacomin 
Jeff Bonano, Chair Vince Harris 
Larry Skelton Paul Hewen 
Ann Silver 

CMAC Members Absent 
Lindsey Costello Salvador Duarte 
Mayuko Majima 

RTC Staff 

Dan Doenges Rebecca Kapuler 
Jim Gee Jacqueline Maldonado 
Lolita Davis 

CMAC Guest 

Khalil Wilson, City of Reno Petra Pava, MTM 
Robbie Pape, SRTS MJ Cloud, SRTS 

The Citizens Multimodal Advisory Committee (CMAC) was conducted as a Hybrid Meeting. 
The meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m. by the Chair, Jeff Bonano. 

ITEM 1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

The agenda was approved as submitted. 

ITEM 2. PUBLIC COMMENT 

There were no public comments. 

ITEM 3. APPROVAL OF THE NOVEMBER 3, 2021 MEETING MINUTES 

The CMAC November 3, 2021, meeting minutes were approved as submitted. 

ITEM 4. ELECTION OF VICE CHAIR FOR THE REMAINDER OF FISCAL 
YEAR 2022. 

1 



 

 
 

 
    

   
  

  
 

 
      

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
  

 
 

 
      

 
  

 
 

  
            

    
 

   

  
  

 
   

 
  

            
  

   
 

 
 

   
  

         
  

Rebecca Kapuler, Senior Technical Planner, recognized two new members – Paul Hewen and 
Larry Skelton. Welcome! She announced Jeff Bonano will be Chair until the end of current 
term, July 2022. Jeff Bonano, Chair, advised the committee to consider the role of Vice Chair. 
Dora Martinez joined the meeting at 5:37p.m. Benjamin Miller volunteered for the position of 
Vice Chair and will hold position until end of term, July 2022. 

Mark Miranda made a motion of election of Vice Chair for the remainder of fiscal year 2022. 

Vince Harris seconded. 

The motion carried unanimously. 

ITEM 5. RECOMMEND FUNDING RANKED AND PRIORITIZED 
TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVES SET-SIDE (TA SET-ASIDE) 
APPLICATIONS AS PRESENTED FOR FFY 2021 AND FFY 2022 IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $807,833. 

Rebecca Kapuler, Senior Technical Planner, briefly described the Transportation Alternatives 
Set-Side (TA-Set-Aside) applications program. The applications received were reviewed, 
verified, ranked and came within budget. Dora Martinez requested information on the City of 
Sparks application. Rebecca Kapuler, Senior Technical Planner briefed the committee on the 
City of Sparks application and stated the applications are ADA compliant. 

Dora Martinez asked for more explanation on solar system for the school applications. Rebecca 
Kapuler, Senior Technical Planner, stated the City of Sparks project will replace three signs, 
updating them with traffic devices and new signage will be installed to reduce speed. MJ 
Cloud, Safe Routes to School, stated their project will install feedback signs which, will let 
drivers know their speed when entering school zones. Pedestrian activated flashers will be 
placed in crosswalks directly in school zones or areas highly impacted by students that walk 
to and from school with large capacity. She confirmed it will not be school zone lighting but a 
pedestrian activated flasher. 

Vince Harris asked if participants have to disclose fund source for local match. Rebecca 
Kapuler, Senior Technical Planner, responded the local match required is 5% and participants 
are asked to give their budget and where their matches are funded. Transportation Alternatives 
Set-Side (Ta Set-Aside) will be presented to TAC, the RTC Board and NDOT for final review. 
Dora Martinez commented when flashers are installed to remember the thirty-six inches 
required for wheelchairs between the pole and dots on the sidewalk. Rebecca Kapuler, Senior 
Technical Planner, stated the comment was appreciated and the projects listed are ADA 
Compliant. 

Matthew Boog asked if additional funds are available for the Transportation Alternatives Set-
Side (TA Set-Aside) program. Rebecca Kapuler, Senior Technical Planner, stated there are no 
additional funds. Matthew Boog also asked of a Road Diet for the City of Reno Urban Road 
and Plumas Street sidewalk. Khalil Wilson, City of Reno, stated the scope of the project was 

2 



 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

                          
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

   
 

   
 

  
  

 
 

  
       

     

 
     

 
          

  
  

   
  

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

 

pedestrian connectivity from Arlington to tennis court over to Virginia Lake with no Road 
Diet. 

Benjamin Miller made a motion to recommend Funding Ranked and Prioritized Transportation 
Alternatives Set-Side (TA Set-Aside) Applications as Presented for FFY 2021 and FFY 2022 
in the amount of $807,833. 

Paul Hewen seconded. 

The motion carried unanimously. 

ITEM 6. MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS/AGENDA ITEMS FOR FUTURE 
CMAC MEETINGS 

There were no member announcements/agenda items given. 

ITEM 7. RTC/RIDE/ACCESS STAFF ITEMS 

Rebecca Kapuler, Senior Technical Planner, welcomed the new committee members, Paul 
Hewen and Larry Skelton. 

Jim Gee, Service Planning and Innovation Manager, announced tentative agreement between 
Keolis and Teamster Union. Expect full service to resume on Saturday, December 4th. Dora 
Martinez asked when service resumes if it will be free for RIDE passengers and can it also be 
free for RTC ACCESS. Jim Gee, Service Planning and Innovation Manager, stated the services 
were offered free for all but RTC ACCESS to meet the deadline given for fares returning and 
to assist with operational expenses. If necessary, in the future all fares will be examined. Fares 
will continue to be free, as is, at least until Monday, December 6th . 

Dan Doenges, RTC Director of Planning, announced the RTC will conduct the Annual Stuff 
A Bus Holiday Food Drive on December 9, 2021, at Sam’s Club from 10:00a.m. to 6:00p.m. 
Donations will be given to the Northern Nevada Food Bank. Dora Martinez asked about free 
rides for donations for paratransit passengers. Dan Doenges, Director of Planning, stated he 
will inquire with RTC staff. 

ITEM 8. PUBLIC COMMENT 

There were no public comments given. 

ITEM 9. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 6:04 p.m. 

3 



 
 

    
 

  
 

  
  
  
 

 
 

    
  

 
 

 
   

  

  
 

  
  

   
  

 
 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

MEETING DATE:  February 2, 2022 AGENDA ITEM 4 

To: Citizens Multimodal Advisory Committee 

From: Dan Doenges, PTP, RSP 
Director of Planning 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Acknowledge receipt of a presentation on the Nevada Sustainable Transportation Funding Study and 
Advisory Working Group. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

The Nevada legislature recently passed Assembly Bill 413 requiring the Nevada Department of 
Transportation to convene an Advisory Working Group (AWG) to study issues related to sustainable 
transportation funding. The AWG must prepare and submit a written report describing its activities, 
findings, conclusions, and recommendations to the Nevada legislature by December 31, 2022. 

The AWG will study the multimodal transportation needs of the state and recommend funding options 
that provide long-term financial sustainability for Nevada's transportation system, including the State 
Highway Fund, while also taking into account the needs for social and user equity and the imperative 
to reduce GHG emissions from the transportation sector. The AWG will also consider the role that 
land use and smart growth strategies can play in transportation costs, reducing emissions, improving 
system efficiency and equity. 



 
 

    
 

  
 

  
    
  
 
 

 
 

  
  

 
 

 
   
 

    
 

  
 

    
       

   
 

 
 

 
 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

MEETING DATE:  February 2, 2022 AGENDA ITEM 5 

To: Citizens Multimodal Advisory Committee 

From: Dan Doenges, PTP, RSP 
Planning Director 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Recommend approval of Amendment 1 to the FY 2022 – FY 2023 Unified Planning Work Program 
(UPWP). 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

The UPWP documents the major transportation planning activities to be undertaken each fiscal year 
and the funding sources necessary to support these activities.  Federal regulations require the RTC to 
develop and approve the UPWP as the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for the region.  The 
UPWP is developed in coordination with the RTC Annual Budget, incorporating the major objectives, 
revenues and expenses identified in the budget. 

The RTC was successful in receiving a Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Transit-Oriented 
Development (TOD) Planning grant award. This grant will fund a planning study to identify potential 
station locations along South Virginia Street that would support the extension of the Virginia Line Bus 
RAPID Transit (BRT) route. The City of Reno will be a partner in this study. One of the conditions of 
the grant award requires that the study be identified in the UPWP. Therefore, staff is proposing an 
amendment to the UPWP to identify all applicable funds that will be utilized to complete the study. 

Attachment 



 
 
 

  
 

 
  

 
 
  

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 

    
  

 
   

   
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

Regional Transportation Commission
of Washoe County 

UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM 

FY 2022 – FY 2023:  July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2023 

May 2021
Pending Amendment February 2022 

This report was funded in part through grants from the Federal Highway Administration 
and Federal Transit Administration, U.S. Department of Transportation, under the State 

Planning and Research Program, Section 505 for Metropolitan Planning Program Section 
104(f) of Title 23, U.S. Code.  The contents of this report do not necessarily reflect the 

official views or policy of the U.S. Department of Transportation. 

Contact Information: 
RTC Planning Department 

775-348-0480 
www.rtcwashoe.com 

Your RTC.  Our Community. 

http://www.rtcwashoe.com/


 
  

 

  

 

  
    

    

    

     

    

    

      

      

    

    

     

   

    

    

   

     

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
OF WASHOE COUNTY 

UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM 
FY 2022 – FY 2023 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

Table of Contents 
1.0 INTRODUCTION....................................................................................................... 1 
2.0 PLANNING EMPHASIS AREAS ............................................................................... 1 

2.1 Implementing MAP-21............................................................................................ 2 
2.2 Regional Models of Cooperation............................................................................ 3 
2.3 Ladders of Opportunity........................................................................................... 4 

3.0 ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE/TITLE VI..................................................................... 5 
4.0 TRANSPORTATION PLANNING PRIORITIES FOR FY 2018 – FY 2019 ................ 6 

4.1 2050 Regional Transportation Plan Guiding Principles & Goals ............................ 6 
4.2 Public Participation................................................................................................. 8 
4.3 Performance Based Planning................................................................................. 8 
4.4 Regional Transportation Improvement Program .................................................. 11 
4.5 Air Quality............................................................................................................. 11 

5.0 WORK ELEMENTS AND TASK DESCRIPTIONS .................................................. 12 

FINANCIAL SPREADSHEET—TABLE 6..................................................................... 26 

APPENDIX A—RTC ORGANIZATIONAL CHART....................................................... 27 

APPENDIX B – NDOT/RTC ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES.................................. 30 



 
     

   

 
   

  

          
        

       
      

 
   

         
       

     
   

 
           

    
    

       
    

       
      

  

  

       
    

      
  

      
     

      
 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM 
FY 2022 – FY 2023 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

The Fiscal Years 2022 – 2023 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) is developed by the 
Regional Transportation Commission of Washoe County (RTC). The UPWP describes 
transportation planning activities scheduled in Washoe County during the period July 1, 2021 to 
June 30, 2023.  These activities will be undertaken by the RTC utilizing the annual federal 
funding allocations from the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) and the Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) as well as local funds. 

The RTC is designated by the Governor as the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for 
Washoe County. As the MPO, the RTC administers the federally required transportation 
planning process within the metropolitan planning area. The RTC planning process considers 
all modes of transportation and yields plans and programs consistent with the planned 
development of the urbanized area.  The RTC coordinates transportation planning activities with 
its three member entities of City of Reno, City of Sparks, and Washoe County. The RTC also 
coordinates with partner agencies including, but not limited to, the Nevada Department of 
Transportation (NDOT), Truckee Meadows Regional Planning Agency (TMRPA), Washoe 
County Health District – Air Quality Management Division (WCHD-AQMD), Washoe County 
School District, Reno-Sparks Indian Colony (RSIC) and Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority (RTAA). 

The UPWP has been organized into six major elements with each element subdivided into 
specific tasks. The six major elements are as follows: 

• Administration 
• Development review for consistency with the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) 
• Multimodal planning 
• Street and highway planning 
• Public transportation 
• Air quality planning 

2.0 PLANNING EMPHASIS AREAS 

In 2014, the FHWA and FTA sent a letter to the Executive Directors of MPOs and the heads of 
the State Departments of Transportation (State DOT) encouraging the agencies to give priority 
to the following emphasis areas in the updated unified planning work programs and statewide 
planning and research programs: MAP-21 Implementation, Regional Models of Cooperation, 
and Ladders of Opportunity. These three priorities were carried forward in the current 
transportation bill: Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act. The planning emphasis 
areas have been integrated into the RTC planning work program for Fiscal Years 2022 – 2023, 
as described in this section. 

Unified Planning Work Program FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 1 
May 2021, Pending Amendment February 2022 



 
     

   

 

     
 
 

  

    
   

  
     

 
  

 

     
 

     
  

 

  
   

  

   

 
 

  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

2.1 Implementing MAP-21 and the FAST Act 

The metropolitan transportation planning process specified by the FAST Act and the 
implementing regulations contained in Title 23 Part 450 of the Code of Federal Regulations 
(CFR) requires the RTC to maintain a cooperative, continuous and comprehensive framework 
for making transportation investment decisions in the metropolitan area.  

The FAST Act carries forward and expands the performance-based transportation planning 
framework established under MAP-21. This UPWP includes data collection and analysis tasks 
that will facilitate annual reporting regarding transportation safety, travel time reliability, 
pavement condition, alternative mode share, and other performance metrics. This UPWP 
includes tasks to continue evaluation of the transportation performance measures and 
performance targets established in the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP).  The project 
prioritization process for the RTP reflects consideration of the adopted performance measures. 

Transportation legislation also requires the planning process to consider eight factors in the 
MPO’s development of their regional transportation plans and programs.  The eight factors are 
listed below and the following table outlines the associated UPWP tasks that address and 
support them. 

1. Support the economic vitality of the metropolitan area, especially by enabling global 
competitiveness, productivity and efficiency 

2. Increase the safety of the transportation system for motorized and non-motorized users 
3. Increase the security of the transportation system for motorized and non-motorized users 
4. Increase accessibility and mobility of people and freight 
5. Protect and enhance the environment, promote energy conservation, improve quality of 

life and promote consistency between transportation improvements and State and local 
planned growth and economic development patterns 

6. Enhance the integration and connectivity of the transportation system, across and between 
modes, for people and freight 

7. Promote efficient transportation system management and operation 
8. Emphasize the preservation of the existing transportation system 

Unified Planning Work Program FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 2 
May 2021, Pending Amendment February 2022 



 
     

   

  

  

  
 

    

  

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

Table 1:  Planning Factors and UPWP Tasks 

Planning Factor 

Task 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

Vitality Safety Security Access Environment Connectivity Eff iciency Preservation 
Resiliency/ 
Reliability 

Travel & 
Tourism 

1.1 Administrative/ 
Continuing Planning • • • • • • • • • • 

1.2  Unified Planning 
Work Program • • • • • • • • • • 

1.3  MPO Certification • • • • • • • • • • 

1.4  Statewide Planning • • • • • • • • • • 

1.5  Training • • • • • • • • • • 
2.1 RTC Development 
Review & Meeting 
Attendance 

• • • • • • • 

3.1  Regional 
Transportation 
Improvement Program 

• • • • • • • • • • 

3.4  Regional 
Transportation Plan 
(RTP) Activities 

• • • • • • • • • • 

3.5  Congestion  
Management Process • • • • • • • 

3.10 Public Participation 
Plan • • • • • • 

3.11 Community 
Involvement Planning • • • • • • • • • 

3.13 Corridor and Area 
Planning • • • • • • • • • • 

4.1 Regional Road 
Impact Fee Activities • • • • • • • 

4.2 Geographic 
Information System 
(GIS) Mgt. 

• • • • • • • 

4.3 Traffic Forecasting • • • • • 

4.18 RTC Traffic Model 
Upgrade/Conversion to 
TransCAD 

• • • • • 

4.27 TMRPA Shared 
Services • • • • 

4.31 Data Collection 
and Analysis Program • • • • • • • • 

5.2 Transit Planning • • • • • • 
6.1 Air Quality 
Modeling/Analysis • • • • 

6.2 CMAQ Planning • • • • • • 
6.3 RTIP/RTP 
Conformity Analysis • • 

• Indicates that task supports planning factor 

2.2 Regional Models of Cooperation 

Through UPWP tasks such as Regional Transportation Plan Activities and Statewide Planning, 
RTC ensures a regional approach to transportation planning by promoting cooperation and 
coordination across transit agency, MPO and state boundaries. The Nevada MPOs and NDOT, 
in partnership with the FHWA Nevada Division Office and FTA Region 9 Office, have adopted a 

Unified Planning Work Program FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 3 
May 2021, Pending Amendment February 2022 



 
     

   

 
        

   
  

      
    

         
    

  
   

  

 

  
       
       

  
  

    
   

   
  

  
 

  
    

   
   

      
  

   

     
   
  

  
      

 

     
  

    
 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

coordinated approach to transportation planning through the formal Planning Executive Group 
and various sub-committees. This coordinated approach allows for information sharing about 
data, needs assessments, funding projections, financial reporting, planning initiatives, project 
delivery and other issues.  RTC participates in multi-jurisdictional and multi-state investment 
studies coordinated through NDOT, including the McCarran Boulevard Corridor Study, State 
Freight Plan, State Rail Plan, and the One Nevada (Long Range) Transportation Plan.  Through 
the US 395 Coalition, RTC collaborates with NDOT, CalTrans, and other jurisdictions along this 
corridor regarding common transportation needs. 

As an organization that integrates the functions of the MPO, transit service provider, and 
regional street and highway program, RTC seamlessly integrates planning for multimodal 
transportation needs. 

2.3 Ladders of Opportunity 

The U.S. DOT created Ladders of Opportunities to develop and enhance initiatives, program 
guidance, tools, and standards that empower transportation leaders and communities to 
revitalize, connect, and create workforce opportunities that lift more Americans into the middle 
class. The following paragraphs demonstrate a small sample of the transportation planning 
efforts that the RTC undertakes to support this initiative. 

RTC strives to provide safe access to essential services for all residents of Washoe County. 
Through the Geographic Information Systems (GIS) task, RTC is able to analyze transportation 
service and access to employment, health care, schools/education, and other services at a 
regional scale. Through the Community Involvement Planning task, RTC develops and 
evaluates new approaches and techniques to expanding public participation, particularly in 
disadvantaged communities. 

The Electric and Alternative Fuel Vehicle Infrastructure and Advanced Mobility Plan will be 
completed through the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) Activities task, which will examine 
the role of technology and shared mobility as transportation options continue to evolve in 
Washoe County. Anticipated plan recommendations include guidance on how to address equity 
in mobility to ensure transportation options are available to all users. Through this plan, staff will 
also consult with officials in the travel and tourism profession, among others, to explore the 
relationship between shared mobility and the hospitality industry. 

The RTP Activities task will also include an update to the Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan 
(BPMP). A refined project prioritization framework was developed through the 2050 RTP 
process, which will be used in conjunction the Data Collection and Analysis Program to better 
prioritize future bicycle, pedestrian, and ADA improvements. In addition, several new multimodal 
project suggestions were received through the outreach efforts of the RTP, and these projects 
will be evaluated for inclusion in the BPMP. 

Under the Transit Planning task, staff will complete the Transit Optimization Plans Strategies 
(TOPS), which will update the RTC Short Range Transit Plan and explore opportunities to better 
serve residents with enhanced mobility options. In addition, the RTC will develop an Equity 
Analysis/Strategy to identify other approaches to engaging and supporting underserved 

Unified Planning Work Program FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 4 
May 2021, Pending Amendment February 2022 



 
     

   

  
 

   

  
  

  
  

       
    

 
 

 

 

     
 

 
   

 
  

 

 

 

 
 

  
  

  

 
 

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 

 

   
  

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

communities with transportation investments. This effort will 
be conducted under the RTP Activities Task. 

3.0 ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE/TITLE VI 

Achieving equity and environmental justice in provision of 
transportation projects and services is an important goal of 
the RTP. The RTC strives to serve the transportation needs 
of all residents in the planning area without discrimination 
based on age, income, race, language, ethnicity, or ability. 
RTC complies with the federal policies and requirements 
listed below: 

• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964: No person in 
the U.S. shall, on the basis of race, color, or national 
origin, be excluded from participation in, denied 
benefits of, or subjected to discrimination under any 
program receiving federal funding. RTC is required 
to take steps to ensure that no discrimination on the 
basis of race occurs. Title VI requires reporting about 
how transit services are implemented and what 
measures the RTC is taking to provide equal access 
to public transportation. 

• Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990: 
Requires that disabled persons have equal access 
to transportation facilities. This includes wheelchair 
accessible accommodations in the transit system. 

• Executive Order on Environmental Justice: 
Executive Order 12898 requires the identification 
and assessment of disproportionately high and 
adverse impacts on minority and low-income 
populations. 

Transportation projects and services are implemented in 
conformance with the RTC Title VI Policy. RTC submits a 
Title VI Report to the Federal Transit Administration every 
three years, with the most recent developed in 2020. As 
identified in the report, the following measures are in place 
to comply with Title VI requirements: 

• Minority, low-income, and Limited English 
Proficiency (LEP) persons are able to provide 
meaningful input into the planning process through 
participating in public meetings held in locations 

RTC Title VI 
Policy 

The RTC is committed 
to ensuring that no
person is excluded
from participation in,
or denied the benefits 
of, its services on the
basis of race, color or
national origin as
protected by Title VI of
the Civil Rights Act of
1964, as amended. 

No person or group of persons 
will be discriminated against 
with regard to fares, routing, 
scheduling, or quality of 
transportation service that the 
RTC furnishes on the basis of 
race, color, or national origin. 
Frequency of service, age and 
quality of RTC vehicles 
assigned to routes, quality of 
RTC stations serving Washoe 
County, and location of routes 
will not be determined on the 
basis of race, color or national 
origin. 

Unified Planning Work Program FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 5 
May 2021, Pending Amendment February 2022 



 
     

   

   
 

 
  

 

  
 

    

    
 

       
 

 

    

     

         
     

  

  
      

     
     

 
  

 

       
    

    
  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

near transit routes and where translators and materials are provided in Spanish and 
English. 
• RTC has a complaint procedure in place to investigate and track Title VI concerns. 
• RTC submits an annual Title VI Certification and Assurance report to the US 
Department of Transportation. 

The 2050 RTP includes a chapter to specifically address promoting equity and environmental 
justice in regional transportation.  The chapter includes an analysis of impacts of RTC projects 
and services on low income and minority population. 

As part of the planning process for all applicable tasks, socioeconomic and environmental data 
are analyzed.  Environmental justice applies to all transportation services and is part of the 
overall planning process. As the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO), the RTC complies 
with Title VI and addresses environmental justice by: 

• Enhancing the analytical capabilities to ensure that the RTP and the RTIP comply with Title 
VI. 

• Identifying residential, employment and transportation patterns of low-income and minority 
populations so that their needs can be identified and addressed and the benefits and 
burdens of transportation investment can be fairly distributed. 

• Evaluating and, where necessary, improving the public involvement processes to eliminate 
participation barriers and engage minority and low-income populations in transportation 
decision making. 

4.0 TRANSPORTATION PLANNING PRIORITIES FOR FY 2022 – FY 2023 
This section describes the priorities of the RTC planning program for the next two years. 

4.1 2050 Regional Transportation Plan Guiding Principles & Goals 

The RTC Board approved the resolution adopting the 2050 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) 
on March 19, 2021 and subsequently received conformity determination from the Federal 
Highway Administration (FHWA), Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and the Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA). The RTP reflects over eighteen months of community outreach and 
agency coordination and provides a balanced approach to improving safety, livability and 
regional connectivity. The plan represents the region’s transportation vision and quality of life 
investments for Safe and Healthy Communities; Economic Prosperity, Equity and Innovation; 
Sustainability and Climate Action; and Increase Travel Choices. 

The RTP was developed with significant input from community residents and stakeholder 
agencies. The public participated through in-person planning workshops, online surveys, virtual 
open houses, and several presentations to local jurisdictions. In addition, area specific outreach 
was accomplished through both in-person and virtual meetings. 

Unified Planning Work Program FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 6 
May 2021, Pending Amendment February 2022 



 
     

   

   
     

   

   
   

   
   

          
 

   
      
     

 

       
  

  
  

    

   
 

 

   

 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

2050 RTP Guiding Principles & Goals
The four guiding principles include promoting: 

• Safe and Healthy Communities 
• Economic Prosperity, Equity and Innovation 
• Sustainability and Climate Action 
• Increase Travel Choices 

The ten goals include: 

• Improve and Promote Safety 
• Integrate All Types of Transportation 
• Promote Healthy Communities and Sustainability 
• Promote and Foster Equity and Environmental Justice 
• Integrate Land Use and Economic Development 
• Manage Existing Systems Efficiently 
• Enhance Regional Connectivity 
• Improve Freight and Goods Movement 
• Invest Strategically 
• Engage the Public and Encourage Community Involvement 

The 2050 RTP establishes the guiding principles and goals for regional transportation planning 
in Washoe County, as described below. These priorities are implemented through the planning 
projects in this UPWP. 

The UPWP links the long range guiding principles of the 2050 RTP to performance based 
planning and project delivery.  As an example, the annual reporting of performance targets in 
the RTP will be conducted, in part, through the data collection and analysis program in the 
UPWP.  The community involvement planning task will allow RTC to continue the collaborative 
partnerships with other agencies, organizations, and members of the general public that were 
established or strengthened through the RTP development process.  The corridor studies 
included in the UPWP will facilitate analysis of safety and multimodal transportation issues that 
are at the core of the guiding principles to provide safe and healthy communities and increase 
travel choices.  The corridor studies allow for an approach that links planning and environmental 
analysis early in project development. 

Through the FY 2022 – FY 2023 UPWP will initiate the 2055 RTP process toward the end of the 
two-year program. The RTC will also conduct several planning initiatives that support the RTP. 
In addition to the BPMP, Advanced Mobility Plan, and Equity Analysis mentioned previously, 
staff will expand the RTC travel demand model to capture the growth in vehicle miles traveled 
(VMT) east of Washoe County. Acquiring updated external zone traffic counts will enhance 

Unified Planning Work Program FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 7 
May 2021, Pending Amendment February 2022 



 
     

   
  
 

   
    

 

  
 

   
        

 
   

 
         

     
       

      
         

    
      

   
      

      
 

 
 

     
   

      
   

   
     

     
    

   
 

    
      

       
    

  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

model accuracy and provide a better understanding of the travel characteristics between the 
urban area and  the growing employment opportunites to the east. An emphasis on regional 
safety is also a significant component of the RTP, while RTC staff continues to partner with 
groups such as Vision Zero Truckee Meadows. 

4.2 Public Participation 

Public and agency coordination is the cornerstone of the transportation planning process. The 
Public Participation Plan was updated in FY 2017 and the RTC will continue to monitor its 
implementation. The plan should be reviewed with respect toward an emphasis in virtual and 
social media outreach platforms as a result of the recent COVID-19 pandemic. 

The public participation plan ensures that residents are given the opportunity to be part of the 
planning efforts that will shape their communities in the future. The plan describes a proactive 
process for engagement with the RTC, and addresses complete information, timely public 
notice, full public access to key decisions, and support of early and continuous involvement of 
the public in developing regional plans and programs. The purpose of the public participation 
plan is to increase community awareness and participation while widening the range of voices 
and views in the planning process. The plan outlines strategies for increasing public information 
and involvement in the planning process. RTC uses a wide range of public participation 
approaches, including community planning workshops, roundtable discussions, open house 
meetings, websites, social media, surveys, and print and broadcast media. 

4.3 Performance Based Planning 

The 2050 RTP identified performance measures that are consistent with the national priorities 
included in MAP-21.  The performance measures are being tracked and analyzed in an annual 
report produced by RTC, as well as being reported to NDOT for their use in carrying out the 
requirements of the National Performance Management program. The information from this 
analysis will be used in future updates to the RTP as projects are evaluated. Performance 
measures are linked to the congestion management process (CMP), which considers safety, 
alternative mode priorities, operations, and travel delay in project selection and prioritization.  
The performance management program and CMP will be used to analyze any potential changes 
that could be made to the capacity program through the RTP process. 

As national and state performance targets are developed or refined, RTC will update the regional 
performance targets as necessary.  RTC is actively participating with NDOT and other Nevada 
MPOs as targets for the performance measures are being established or updated. The National 
Performance Measures identified in the 2050 RTP are provided in the tables below. 

Unified Planning Work Program FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 8 
May 2021, Pending Amendment February 2022 



 
     

   
  
 

 
 

     
  

 
  

 
 

  
  

 

 
 

 
  

 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

 

 
 

  

  
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 

  
  

 

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

    

 
    

 
 

    

 
  

    

 
 

    

 
 

    

 
 

    

 
 

    

   
      

     
    

  

1 

1 

1 

+ 

+ 1 

~ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

Table 2 
National Safety (PM1) Performance Measures 

RTP Goal Performance Measures Performance Target 2017 Performance 
Measure Status 

2017 Performance 
Target Status 

Improve 
Safety 

Number of fatal crashes 
(5-year average) 

8% annual reduction 
from previous year 
trend line (41 for year 
2018) 

42 Working towards 
aspirational goal of 
Zero Fatalities 

Number of fatal crashes 
per 100 million VMT 
(5-year average) 

1.11 for year 2018 
based on fatal crashes 
target 

1.12 Working towards 
aspirational goal of 
Zero Fatalities 

Number of serious injury 
crashes (5-year average) 

Maintain existing 
decreasing trend (157 
for year 2018) 

157 Met 2018 goal and 
working towards 
aspirational goal of 
Zero Fatalities 

Number of serious injury 
crashes per 100 million 
VMT (5-year average) 

4.24 base on serious 
injury crashes target 
based on serious 
injury crashes target 

4.13 Met 2018 goal and 
working towards 
aspirational goal of 
Zero Fatalities 

Number of non-motorized 
fatalities (5-year average) 

8% annual reduction 
from previous year 
trend line (14 for year 
2018) 

14 Met 2018 goal and 
working towards 
aspirational goal of 
Zero Fatalities 

Number of non-motorized 
serious injuries (5-year 
average) 

Maintain existing 
decreasing trend 
(30 in 2018) 

31 Working towards 
aspirational goal of 
Zero Fatalities 

Table 3 
National PM2 Performance Measures (Targets Set by NDOT) 

Performance Measures Baseline 
2-Year 

Condition/
Performance 

2-Year 
Target 

4-Year 
Target 

Percentage of Pavements of the
Interstate System in Good Condition 

81.8% 74.7% 

Percentage of Pavements of the 
Interstate System in Poor Condition 

0.3% 1.4% 

Percentage of Pavements of the Non-
Interstate NHS in Good Condition 

79.4% 77.6% 67.6% 55.8% 

Percentage of Pavements of the Non-
Interstate NHS in Good Condition 
Percentage of Pavements of the Non-
Interstate NHS in Poor Condition 

4.7% 4.1% 5.7% 6.5% 

Percentage of Pavements of the Non-
Interstate NHS in Poor Condition 
Percentage of NHS Bridges
Classified as in Good Condition 

42.2% 42.9% 35.0% 35.0% 

Percentage of NHS Bridges
Classified as in Poor Condition 

0.5% 0.9% 7.0% 7.0% 

Note: the statewide budget for fiscal years 2018 and 2019 was much higher than anticipated after the 2-year 
targets were established. Therefore, the increase in spending led to better than expected 2-year pavement 
and bridge condition. The 4-year targets, which were established at the same time as the 2-year targets, have 
not been revised; but it is estimated that the 4-year pavement and bridge condition will exceed the targets. 

Unified Planning Work Program FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 9 
May 2021, Pending Amendment February 2022 



 
     

   
  
 

  
 

     
  

 
  

 
 

 

   

 

 

   

 
 

   

 
  

 
  
  

 
  

 
  

 
   

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
   

 
 
 

 
  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

Table 4 
National PM3 Performance Measures (System Performance/Freight) 

RTP Goal Performance Measures Performance Target 2017 Performance 
Measure Status 

2017 Performance 
Target Status 

Congestion 
Reduction 

Percentage of person-
miles traveled that are 
reliable on the Interstate 
System 

90% 99.60% Met goal 

Percentage of person-
miles traveled that are 
reliable on the Non-
Interstate National 
Highway System (NHS) 

75% 84.60% Met goal 

Truck Travel Time 
Reliability (TTTR) Index" 

1.5 1.24 Met goal 

Table 5 
National PM3 Performance Measures (CMAQ) 

Performance Measure Target 
Total emission reduction of NOx for CMAQ 
funded projects 

Working toward RTC 4-year target of 152.1 
kg/day 

Total emission reduction of VOC for CMAQ 
funded projects 

Working toward RTC 4-year target of 266.9 
kg/day 

Total emission reduction of PM10 for CMAQ 
funded projects 

Working toward RTC 4-year target of 1.2 
kg/day 

Total emission reduction of CO for CMAQ 
funded projects 

Working toward RTC 4-year target of 2,019.2 
kg/day 

Unified Planning Work Program FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 10 
May 2021, Pending Amendment February 2022 



 
     

   
  
 

   
 

 
        

    
 

   
     

    
   

 

 
 

     
 

     
  

 
  

  
   

   
  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

4.4 Regional Transportation Improvement Program 

The short-range planning document, the Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP), 
represents the first five years of the 2050 RTP. The document is developed in draft form by 
RTC staff based upon joint work by RTC staff and staff representatives of the local government 
agencies.  RTC’s advisory committees then review the document and the RTC Board adopts it 
through a public hearing process following a 21-day public comment period. The RTC and 
NDOT work together to develop, analyze, and coordinate projects included in the RTIP and 
Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP). The most recent project listing is 
available for the public to review through the electronic STIP (eSTIP) at 
https://estip.nevadadot.com/default.asp. 

4.5 Air Quality 

One of the requirements for both the RTP and RTIP is that they conform to all applicable State 
Implementation Plans (SIPs) and the Clean Air Act (CAA).  Should the need arise to amend 
either document, staff will work with the Air Quality Interagency Consultation Workgroup to 
ensure conformity on any proposed amendments if applicable.  

The RTC also partners with the Washoe County Health District in community outreach and 
education programs to promote public health through active transportation, including Nevada 
Moves Day, the annual Washoe County Healthy Community Forum, and Bike to Work, School 
and Fun Month. 

Unified Planning Work Program FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 11 
May 2021, Pending Amendment February 2022 

https://estip.nevadadot.com/default.asp


 
     

   
  
 

   
 

    
  

 
   

 
 

 
  

 
   

 
 

 
         

      
     
  

 
         

   
   

  
   

   
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 
 

    
        

     
 

     
 

 
 

 
  
   

________________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

5.0 WORK ELEMENTS AND TASK DESCRIPTIONS 

This section describes the six major elements and the tasks within those elements.  Except as 
otherwise noted the RTC is the administrator of each of the tasks. 

WORK ELEMENT: 1.0 ADMINISTRATION 

PREVIOUS AND ONGOING WORK 

The tasks in this work element cover activities related to the overall administration of RTC's 
transportation planning program.  All tasks are annual or ongoing activities undertaken to 
maintain compliance with federal/state regulations, organize and manage Planning Department 
activities and improve staff skills. 

This element also funds the reproduction and distribution of the many required planning 
documents including the RTIP, RTP, UPWP, Public Participation Plan, and other documents 
mandated by the FAST Act.  In addition, this work element funds the continuing, comprehensive, 
and cooperative planning and public involvement process required by the FAST Act, including 
publication of public notices and providing support to the RTC advisory committees. 

RTC continues to work in coordination with local governments and state and federal 
transportation agencies to implement and accomplish planning programs.  This occurs through 
the monthly meeting and review of the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC); monthly Planning 
Executive Group (PEG) and sub-group meetings with NDOT, FHWA, and the other Nevada 
MPOs; RTC staff participation with the TPAC; the Truckee Meadows Regional Planning Agency 
(TMRPA); technical advisory groups for specific projects and studies; and many other 
committees and groups. 

TASKS 

1.1 Administration/Continuing Planning 

Task Elements 

Perform general administrative functions concerning the transportation planning program 
including preparation of administrative reports, analyses, budgets, goals and objectives, 
correspondence, documents, memos, etc. Also includes the time and materials used for the 
advertising, preparation and conducting of the public involvement activities including all RTC 
advisory committees and their subcommittees, the RTP Agency Working Group and any special 
committees convened to address regional transportation issues and other public 
meeting/involvement activities. Provide dues, subscriptions and professional memberships to 
organizations as appropriate. 

Expected Products 

• Monthly agendas for advisory committees and general administrative functions 
• Miscellaneous reports, analyses, correspondence and memoranda 

Unified Planning Work Program FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 12 
May 2021, Pending Amendment February 2022 



 
     

   
  
 

 
  

 
    

       
     
 

  
 

 
 

      
     

      
 

 
 

 
       
       
     

 
     

 
      

         
    
 

  
 

 
 

 
   

     
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

     
         
    
 
  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Completion Date: Ongoing task 

Funding: Federal PL Funds 
Local 

$597,132 
$31,428 

TOTAL $628,560 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

1.2 Unified Planning Work Program 

Task Elements 

Prepare and process the quarterly reports for the FY 2022 – FY 2023 Unified Planning Work 
Program (UPWP) as well as year-end reports. Prepare and submit any necessary amendments 
to the UPWP. Prepare and adopt the FY 2024 – FY 2025 UPWP in cooperation with local, state 
and federal agencies. 

Expected Products 

• FY 2022 – FY 2023 UPWP quarterly and annual reports 
• Amendments to the FY 2022 – FY 2023 UPWP as necessary 
• An adopted FY 2024 – FY 2025 UPWP 

Completion Date: June 2023 as well as ongoing task 

Funding: Federal PL Funds $11,197 
Local $589 
TOTAL $11,786 

1.3 MPO Certification 

Task Elements 

This task includes preparing and maintaining documentation of all planning activities carried out 
by RTC for MPO certification by the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Transportation 
(USDOT) pursuant to MAP-21 and FAST Act requirements. 

Expected Products 

Support for MPO certification 

Completion Date: Ongoing task 

Funding: Federal PL Funds $1,866 
Local $98 
TOTAL $1,964 

Unified Planning Work Program FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 13 
May 2021, Pending Amendment February 2022 



 
     

   
  
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
       

       
    
 

  
 

 
 

    
    
    

   
 

 
 
  
  

 
   

 
     

       
     
 

     
 

 
 

    
  

  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

1.4 Statewide Planning 

Task Elements 

Participate in the statewide transportation planning process including attendance and 
participation in the TPAC and other project advisory committees, coordination on planning 
studies and data sharing efforts, involvement in the project selection process, input on safety 
improvements and other applicable activities. 

Expected Products 

Coordinated state planning process and documents 

Completion Date: Ongoing task 

Funding: Federal PL Funds $37,321 
Local $1,964 
TOTAL $39,285 

1.5 Training 

Task Elements 

Facilitate and attend training courses and webinars related to multimodal transportation planning 
and safety as appropriate, including training on specific planning tools and programs such as 
TransCAD, VISSIM, GIS, etc.  Maintain in-house library of transportation planning publications 
and other materials for use by RTC and local agency staff. 

Expected Products 

• Increased staff skill and knowledge levels 
• Organized, up-to-date and functional library 

Completion Date: Ongoing task 

Funding: Federal PL Funds $111,962 
Local $5,893 
TOTAL $117,855 

WORK ELEMENT: 2.0 DEVELOPMENT REVIEW 

PREVIOUS AND ONGOING WORK 

The Cities of Reno and Sparks and Washoe County solicit comments from RTC on all major 
residential, commercial, industrial and other proposed developments, particularly those of 
regional significance.  RTC provides comments on the anticipated traffic impacts associated 
with the development and the need to provide right-of-way and improvements to serve all modes 

Unified Planning Work Program FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 14 
May 2021, Pending Amendment February 2022 



 
     

   
  
 

           
 

 
          

  
        

   
    

     
 

 
 

 
    

 
 

 
  

    
  

 
 

     
   

    
 

 
 

  
 

   
 

  
 

       
       
     
 
  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

of travel per the RTIP and RTP. The information generated by this review process serves as 
an important input to the transportation planning process. 

One of the most important products of the development review task is the identification of 
development impacts to long-range transportation improvements contained in the RTP.  In 
particular, the development review process has identified right-of-way needs and allowed for 
corridor protection through building setbacks, project redesign and advance right-of-way 
acquisition, when appropriate. This process also allows RTC to identify and request 
accommodations for transit services and provide information on trip reduction opportunities 
where applicable. 

TASKS 

2.1 RTC Development Review and Meeting Attendance 

Task Elements 

Perform reviews of proposed developments to determine transportation impacts, recommend 
mitigation measures and comment to public agencies in a timely fashion. Represent RTC as 
the MPO at development-related meetings and provide supporting information to local 
commissions, boards, planning staffs and consultants regarding RTC comments. 

Maintain a development review database containing information on project location, land-use, 
trip generation and RTC comments.  Document the consistency of the population and 
employment impacts of approved projects in future year forecasts. 

Expected Products 

• Letters to the local jurisdictions containing RTC comments on proposed developments 
as necessary 

• Current and continuously updated and accurate database for approved development 

Completion Date: Ongoing task 

Funding: Federal PL Funds $29,857 
Local $1,571 
TOTAL $31,428 

Unified Planning Work Program FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 15 
May 2021, Pending Amendment February 2022 



 
     

   
  
 

     
 

 
 

       
          

    
 

  
 

 
 

   
 

 
 

     
     

   
 

 
 

      
     
    

 
  

 
       

       
     
 

   
 

 
 

            
          

     
 

        
    

   
     

 
 

  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

WORK ELEMENT: 3.0 MULTIMODAL PLANNING AND PROGRAMMING 

PREVIOUS AND ONGOING WORK 

This work element encompasses RTC’s multimodal planning and programming activities. 
During the FY 2020 – FY 2021 timeframe, the major activities under this task included 
development of 2050 RTP and the FFY 2021-2025 RTIP In addition, the Electric and Alternative 
Fuel Vehicle Infrastructure and Advanced Mobility Plan, which was initiated under the last 
UPWP will be completed. 

TASKS 

3.1 Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) 

Task Elements 

Maintain the FFY 2021-2025 RTIP through the duration of the UPWP. Include new 
transportation projects within the urbanized area funded with RTC, state or federal funds and 
prepare and complete all necessary amendments and administrative modifications. 

Expected Products 

• Maintenance of the 2021-2025 RTIP through the duration of the UPWP 
• Amendments and modifications to the RTIP as needed 
• Initial development of the FFY 2023-2027 RTIP toward the end of the two-year UPWP 

Completion Date: Ongoing task 

Funding: Federal PL Funds $26,125 
Local $1,375 
TOTAL $27,500 

3.4 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) Activities 

Task Elements 

The 2050 RTP was adopted by the RTC Board on March 19, 2020. This task will include 
maintenance and any necessary amendments to the 2050 RTP until work on the 2055 RTP is 
initiated. It is anticipated that this will begin toward the end of the two-year program. 

Another item under this task includes completion of the Electric and Alternative Fuel Vehicle 
Infrastructure and Advanced Mobility Plan. This plan will examine the role of technology and 
shared mobility as transportation options continue to evolve in Washoe County. It will also look 
at what the region can do to prepare for anticipated changes in mobility. 

An update to the RTC Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan (BPMP) will also be completed under 
this task to better prioritize future bicycle, pedestrian, and ADA improvements. In addition, 

Unified Planning Work Program FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 16 
May 2021, Pending Amendment February 2022 



 
     

   
  
 

   
  

 
  

  
   

   
 

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
  
  
  
  
  

 
  

 
     

       
     
 

  
 

 
 

    
     

 
   

 
     

        
 

 
 

  
 

  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

several new multimodal project suggestions, which were received through the 2050 RTP 
process, will be evaluated for inclusion in the BPMP. 

Following up on the anticipated completion of the Statewide Freight Plan developed by NDOT, 
the RTC will conduct a more detailed study of the freight network, goods movement, and needs 
assessment for the Reno-Sparks area. This study will examine potential policy and infrastructure 
improvements to better facilitate the movement of goods throughout the region. 

The RTC also anticipates development of an Equity Analysis/Strategy to identify other 
approaches to engaging and supporting underserved communities with transportation 
investments. 

Other requests received include an evaluation of travel time reliability on the region’s surface 
streets, and continued support and analysis of transportation safety efforts. 

Expected Products 

• RTP amendments as needed throughout the year, initiation of 2055 RTP 
• Completed Electric and Alternative Fuel Vehicle Infrastructure and Advanced Mobility Plan 
• Updated Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan 
• Initiate Regional Freight Study 
• Equity Analysis/Strategy 
• Analysis and deliverables on applicable requests 

Completion Date: Ongoing task 

Funding: Federal PL Funds 
Local 

$512,316 
$26,964 

TOTAL $539,280 

3.5 Congestion Management Process 

Task Elements 

An updated congestion management process was developed to reflect the guiding principles, 
goals, and project prioritization framework in the 2050 RTP. This process includes safety, 
alternative mode capacity, operational improvements, land use compatibility, and community 
input as factors in the CMP. 

The CMP will be used to evaluate new projects that are suggested for incorporation into the 
RTP. The CMP will be instrumental in any future updates to the RTP as well. 

Expected Products 

CMP evaluation of proposed projects for the 2045 RTP 

Completion Date: Ongoing task 

Unified Planning Work Program FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 17 
May 2021, Pending Amendment February 2022 



 
     

   
  
 

 
     

       
     
 

  
 

 
 

      
   

 
    

  
 

 
 

  
 

  
 

     
       
     
 

  
 

 
 

      
     

     
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

     
       
     
 
  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

Funding: Federal PL Funds $1,866 
Local $98 
TOTAL $1,964 

3.10 Public Participation Plan Development/Update 

Task Elements 

The Public Participation Plan should be periodically reviewed, to reflect changes in federal 
legislation, current outreach procedures, and changes to the structure of RTC advisory 
committees.  This is on ongoing task to ensure that the public participation plan is in compliance 
with federal regulations and that the agency is making the best use of all the available methods 
to engage the public in the planning process. 

Expected Products 

Maintenance of the Public Participation Plan 

Completion Date: Ongoing task 

Funding: Federal PL Funds $7,464 
Local $393 
TOTAL $7,857 

3.11 Community Involvement Planning 

Task Elements 

RTC will continue to build on the community outreach activities including those related to 
planning studies, visioning, and other regional transportation planning issues. This task includes 
development of outreach and presentation materials. The RTC is also a participant in the Vision 
Zero Truckee Meadows Coalition and will continue to help facilitate data sharing and outreach 
to support the goals of this community partnership. 

Expected Products 

Outreach activities 

Completion Date: Ongoing task 

Funding: Federal PL Funds $67,177 
Local $3,536 
TOTAL $70,713 

Unified Planning Work Program FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 18 
May 2021, Pending Amendment February 2022 



 
     

   
  
 

  
 

 
 

 
  

  
   

 
 

    
    

    
 

     
     

 
  

 
 

         
     

  
       

    
   

  
    

 
 

 
 

       
 

    
   

  
   

   
    

 
 

 
 

   
  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

3.13 Corridor and Area Planning 

Task Elements 

It is anticipated that several corridor studies will be undertaken through this UPWP. These 
include a Verdi Area Transportation Study, Midtown Circulation Study, Regional Parking Study, 
and Pyramid Way Corridor Study. The RTC will also provide support to the City of Reno and the 
Nevada Department of Transportation on a Downtown Virginia Street Study and a McCarran 
Boulevard Corridor Study, respectively. However, it is expected that funding for the last two 
studies (including staff time) will be provided through other sources outside of the UPWP. 

Corridor/area studies specific to this UPWP are listed below. However, activities for the FY 2022 
– FY 2023 UPWP also include any special planning analyses/corridor studies to further overall 
regional goals and objectives as needed. 

• Verdi Area Transportation Study: The study will focus on traffic operations analysis and 
improvements, safety improvements, pedestrian and bicycle connectivity and 
microtransit service needs. The Verdi area is expected to see significant residential 
growth over the next several years, and this study will look at how to best support the 
transportation needs for planned development. 

• Midtown Circulation Study: The RTC recently completed roadway improvements along 
the Virginia Street corridor in Midtown as part of the Virginia Street Bus RAPID Transit 
(BRT) Extension project. In addition to much need multimodal and traffic calming 
improvements, center medians and access management features were constructed, 
which modified traffic circulation in Midtown. This study will evaluate current circulation 
patterns and identify any opportunities to optimize traffic flow while maintaining the 
effectiveness of the new constructed pedestrian safety measures. 

• Regional Parking Study: Both the Cities of Reno and Sparks have requested a parking 
study for their respective downtown areas. As the City of Reno moves toward 
establishing a more pedestrian-friendly downtown, it is looking to create separation 
between vehicles and other transportation modes and centralize parking availability. The 
City of Sparks has successfully achieved high-density development in its downtown area 
and is exploring parking options to support demand. Additionally, there has been an 
increase in demand for Park and Ride lots in central Sparks to support an increasing 
demand for carpools and vanpools for commuters traveling to nearby industrial centers. 

• Pyramid Way Corridor Study: A request was made to evaluate traffic operations and 
potential safety issues on Pyramid Way from I-80 to McCarran Boulevard. This 
approximately 1.5 mile section of Pyramid Way contains an eclectic mix of residential 
and retail land uses, both small mom and pop storefronts/restaurants and strip malls, as 
well as several churches. The corridor is a state-owned roadway and primarily a four-
lane facility with major intersections at Victorian Avenue, Prater Way, Oddie Boulevard, 
and McCarran Boulevard. 

Expected Products 

• Verdi Area Transportation Study 
• Midtown Circulation Study 

Unified Planning Work Program FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 19 
May 2021, Pending Amendment February 2022 



 
     

   
  
 

   
  
  

 
   

 
             

       
     
 

     
 

 
 

  
    

 
    

 
     

  
  

 
    

 
 

 
 

     
 

 
 

      
  

        
  

 
 

 
   
   

 
  

 
     

       
     

________________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

• Regional Parking Study 
• Pyramid Way Corridor Study 
• Various special planning analyses/corridor studies as needed 

Completion Date: Ongoing task 

Funding: Federal PL Funds 
Local 

$514,863 
$27,098 

TOTAL $541,961 

WORK ELEMENT: 4.0 STREET AND HIGHWAY PLANNING 

PREVIOUS AND ONGOING WORK 

The Regional Transportation Plan provides the basis for future development of Washoe 
County's transportation system.  Major activities during the previous UPWP included: 

• An updated and upgraded TransCAD regional travel demand model, including streamlined 
conversion of data for use in air quality modeling. 

• Identification of long-term trends for bicycle, pedestrian, and wheelchair mobility through 
the Data Collection and Analyis program. 

• Continued development of RTC's Geographic Information System (GIS) capability, 
including the production of several online interactive maps and enhanced safety data. 

• Continued coordination of traffic counts and forecasts as needed to support RTC, NDOT 
and local government activities. 

TASKS 

4.1 Regional Road Impact Fee (RRIF) Activities 

Task Elements 

Conduct planning work, as the MPO, associated with the update and maintenance of the RRIF 
program in cooperation with local government agencies and the RRIF Technical Advisory 
Committee. Tasks will include planning work necessary to update socioeconomic data, provide 
travel forecasts, and evaluate capacity improvement solutions. 

Expected Products 

• Continued review of the RRIF 
• Continuous update of socioeconomic data and provision of travel forecasts 

Completion Date: Ongoing task 

Funding: Federal PL Funds $7,464 
Local $393 
TOTAL $7,857 

Unified Planning Work Program FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 20 
May 2021, Pending Amendment February 2022 



 
     

   
  
 

 
  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

Unified Planning Work Program FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 21 
May 2021, Pending Amendment February 2022 



 
     

   
  
 

  
 

 
 

    
     
    

    
  

 
 

 
 

   
 

  
 

    
       
     
 

  
 

 
 

     
     

     
  

 
 

 
  

 
  

 
     

         
     
 

   
 

 
 

   
           

      
________________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

4.2 Geographic Information System (GIS) Management 

Task Elements 

Maintain and continue to refine network files, traffic analysis zone structures and other GIS files 
necessary to support a variety of RTC planning needs. Frequent analysis of socioeconomic, 
transportation, safety, land use, and environmental data as part of the planning process, 
including analysis of 2020 Census data.  Analyses will be conducted for planning-level 
alternatives developed for long-range and/or corridor studies.  Products such as interactive 
mapping will be developed to provide transparent and up-to-date project information to the 
public. 

Expected Products 

GIS products adequate to support ongoing RTC planning activities 

Completion Date: Ongoing task 

Funding: Federal PL Funds 
Local 

$111,962 
$5,893 

TOTAL $117,855 

4.3 Traffic Forecasting 

Task Elements 

Provide traffic forecasts as requested at system and corridor level for the RTIP, RTP and other 
planning projects to further overall regional goals and objectives.  Respond to travel forecast 
requests from NDOT, regional and local governments, and the public that are at a planning level 
analysis and not otherwise identified as part of regional or corridor analyses. 

Expected Products: 

Traffic forecasts and projections as requested 

Completion Date: Ongoing task 

Funding: Federal PL Funds $11,197 
Local $589 
TOTAL $11,786 

4.18 RTC Traffic Model Upgrade/Conversion to TransCAD 

Task Elements 

The travel demand model will continue to be refined based on data collection and calibration 
efforts as well as necessary software requirements. The RTC integrates land use data for the 
region into the travel demand forecasting model that assists in the identification of current and 

Unified Planning Work Program FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 22 
May 2021, Pending Amendment February 2022 



 
     

   
  
 

 
  

      
 

  
    

           
  

 
 

 
    
  

 
   

 
  

 
    

       
     
 

  
 

 
 

 
    

   
            

 
 

 
 

      
 

 
  

 
   

        
    
 
  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

future transportation needs through the shared work program with the Truckee Meadows 
Regional Planning Agency (TMRPA).  RTC will collaborate with TMRPA in the development of 
the 2022 Consensus Forecasts, which will inform the travel demand model. 

The travel demand model will be expanded with support from NDOT and the City of Fernley in 
an effort to build a more robust and comprehensive Northern Nevada model. This project is in 
response to recent growth in employment opportunities and commuter travel between the Reno-
Sparks area, Tahoe Reno Industrial (TRI) Center, and the City of Fernley. It is anticipated that 
travel data will be purchased to support this effort. 

Expected Products 

• Continued refinement of the travel demand model 
• Integration of the disaggregated 2022 Consensus Forecasts into the travel demand 

model 
• Geographic expansion of the model 

Completion Date: Ongoing task 

Funding: Federal PL Funds $150,642 
Local $7,929 
TOTAL $158,570 

4.27 Truckee Meadows Regional Planning Agency (TMRPA) Shared Services 

Task Elements 

This task will provide shared staff resources and expertise between the RTC and TMRPA for 
MPO activities. The core areas of this shared program delivery under the UPWP include GIS 
analysis, data collection, online data access, and development of the 2022 Consensus 
Forecasts. TMRPA will also work with RTC to forecast the traffic impacts of various 
development scenarios. 

Expected Products 

Expected products will include shared GIS data resources, collaborative public outreach 
materials and events, and analytical staff reports on various planning topics. 

Completion Date: Ongoing task 

Funding: Federal PL Funds $125,197 
Local $6,589 
TOTAL $131,786 

Unified Planning Work Program FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 23 
May 2021, Pending Amendment February 2022 



 
     

   
  
 

  
 

 
 

 
   

  
     

  
 

 
 

   
   

 
 

  
 

    
        
   
 
 

     
 

 
 

     
       

 
  

       
 

      
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

 

   
    

 
        

 
________________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

4.31 Data Collection and Analysis Program 

Task Elements 

This task includes data collection related to safety, regional bicycle and pedestrian counts, traffic 
calming treatments, and other transportation infrastructure data as needed.  Analysis of mode 
share by auto, transit, bicycle, and pedestrian will be conducted.  This program will support 
monitoring of transportation performance measures included in the 2050 RTP. In addition, this 
data will be used to assist with prioritization of future multimodal infrastructure investment. 

Expected Products 

Creation and maintenance of GIS data, updated multimodal count database, and analysis for 
the performance measures identified in the annual report. Prioritization of multimodal 
transportation improvements. 

Completion Date: Ongoing task 

Funding: Federal PL Funds $204,928 
Local $10,786 
TOTAL $215,714 

WORK ELEMENT: 5.0 PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION PLANNING 

PREVIOUS AND ONGOING WORK 

The Affordable Housing Study was completed to determine potential locations for the 
development of affordable housing near higher-ridership transit routes to better facilitate a jobs-
housing balance in the region. The Coordinated Human Services Transportation Plan (CTP) 
was also completed. This plan is required by the FTA for activities to be funded by the Section 
5310 program, and addresses means to maximize the use of existing resources and increase 
the efficiency of transportation service delivery among various agencies and organizations 
through the private, non-profit, and public sectors. Continued analysis of transit route 
performance will also occur throughout this UPWP cycle to maximize system efficiency. 

TASKS 

5.2 Transit Planning 

Task Elements 

This task will include transit planning related to bus route analysis and modifications, bus stop 
facilities and amenities, bus maintenance facilities, transit fleet monitoring and implementation 
of new technology, and monitoring of transit performance measures. 

The RTC will continue to monitor and update the Transit Asset Management (TAM) Plan as 
needs and priorities change.  TAM plans are required of all agencies that own, operate, or 

Unified Planning Work Program FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 24 
May 2021, Pending Amendment February 2022 



 
     

   
  
 

     
 

 
  

    
    

    
      
     

 
 

     
      

    
    
 

 
 

 
     

 
  

 
  

 
    

    
        
    
 

    
 

 
  

   
    

 
   

   
     

 
  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

manage capital assets used to provide public transportation and receive federal financial 
assistance. 

Additionally, the RTC will develop the Transit Optimization Plan Strategies (TOPS), formerly 
known as the RTC Short Range Transit Plan (SRTP). The TOPS will include a thorough review 
and evaluation of the effectiveness and efficiency of current transit routes, schedules and 
service standards; and a five-year capital and operating plan, including any new service. 
Proposed changes to the fixed-route system will address potential impacts on the ADA 
paratransit system and compliance with Title VI, Limited English Proficiency (LEP) and 
Environmental Justice (EJ) requirements and regulations. 

The RTC received a Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) 
Planning grant award to fund a planning study which will identify potential station locations along 
South Virginia Street and support the proposed extension of the Virginia Line Bus RAPID Transit 
(BRT) route. The City of Reno will be an active partner in this study and consultant services are 
anticipated. 

Expected Products 

• Monthly transit system operations reports and sections of the annual report related to 
performance measures 

• Development of the TOPS 

Completion Date: Ongoing task 

Funding: Federal PL Funds $383,392 
FTA TOD Planning $300,000 
Local $95,179 
TOTAL $778,571 

WORK ELEMENT: 6.0 AIR QUALITY PLANNING 

PREVIOUS AND ONGOING WORK 

During the previous UPWP, the RTC continued participation in the air quality interagency 
consultation group comprised of various agencies including Washoe County Health District — 
Air Quality Management Division (WCHD-AQMD) and the Nevada Department of Environmental 
Protection (NDEP) in order to meet the Transportation Conformity requirements for the 2050 
RTP. Staff will continue to participate in planning activities that seek to improve Washoe 
County’s attainment/maintenance status for PM10 and CO criteria air pollutants. 

Unified Planning Work Program FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 25 
May 2021, Pending Amendment February 2022 



 
     

   
  
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

      
  

   
 

     
   

 
 

 
  

 
   

 
  

 
    

       
     
 

  
 

 
 

  
           

 
 

 
 

    
   

 
  

 
     

       
     
 
  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

TASKS 

6.1 Air Quality Modeling/Analysis 

Task Elements 

Perform transportation monitoring and analysis required as part of the Washoe County 
Transportation Conformity Plan.  This task will include, as needed, analysis of alternate base 
years and mobile source measures proposed for inclusion in local air quality plans. 

Continue to attend meetings and monitor activities of the WCHD-AQMD and other organizations 
dealing with air quality issues. The interagency consultation group meets on a quarterly basis. 

Expected Products 

• Continued participation in the conformity process established in the Washoe County 
Transportation Conformity Plan 

• Air quality analysis as needed under the current RTP. 

Completion Date: Ongoing task 

Funding: Federal PL Funds 
Local 

$11,197 
$589 

TOTAL $11,786 

6.2 CMAQ Evaluation Planning 

Task Elements 

Continue to conduct planning-level emission reduction calculations and cost benefit analyses 
for CMAQ projects. Prepare the annual CMAQ report which is used as the basis for reporting 
performance targets under the MAP-21 Performance Management program.  

Expected Products 

• CMAQ planning-level emission reduction calculations and cost benefit analysis 
• Annual CMAQ report and updated performance targets 

Completion Date: Ongoing task 

Funding: Federal PL Funds $7,464 
Local $393 
TOTAL $7,857 

Unified Planning Work Program FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 26 
May 2021, Pending Amendment February 2022 



 
     

   
  
 

   
 

 
 

  
  

  
 

 
 

    
 

  
 

    
      
     
 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

6.3 RTIP/RTP Conformity Analyses 

Task Elements 

Prepare updated conformity analyses of RTC plans and programs as required to comply with 
Clean Air Act mandates and guidelines.  Conformity analyses will encompass the non-
attainment or maintenance area appropriate for each criteria air pollutant. 

Expected Products 

Continue to perform conformity analyses, as needed, for the RTP and the RTIP 

Completion Date: Ongoing task 

Funding: Federal PL Funds 
Local 

$1,866 
$98 

TOTAL $1,964 

Unified Planning Work Program FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 27 
May 2021, Pending Amendment February 2022 



 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

TABLE 6 
FY 2022-2023 UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM 

Totals may vary slightly due to rounding 
COSTS FUNDING SOURCES 

WORK 
ELEMENT TASK 

STAFF 
HOURS 

% 
HOURS STAFF CONSULT TOTAL 

Federal 
PL FUNDS 

Local 
MATCH* 

RTC Fuel 
TAX 

RTC Sales 
TAX 

TOTAL 
LOCAL TOTAL 

1.0 ADMINISTRATION 
1.1  Adminstration/Continuing Planning 8,000 35.6% $628,560 $0 $628,560 $597,132 $31,428 $31,428 $0 $31,428 $628,560 
1.2  Unified Planning Work Program 150 0.7% $11,786 $0 $11,786 $11,197 $589 $589 $0 $589 $11,786 
1.3  MPO Certification 25 0.1% $1,964 $0 $1,964 $1,866 $98 $98 $0 $98 $1,964 
1.4  Statewide Planning 500 2.2% $39,285 $0 $39,285 $37,321 $1,964 $1,964 $0 $1,964 $39,285 
1.5  Training 1,500 6.7% $117,855 $0 $117,855 $111,962 $5,893 $5,893 $0 $5,893 $117,855 

Subtotal: 10,175 45.3% $799,450 $0 $799,450 $759,478 $39,972 $39,972 $0 $39,972 $799,450 

2.0 DEVELOPMENT REVIEW 
2.1 RTC Development Review & Meeting Attendance 

Subtotal: 
400 
400 

1.8% 
1.8% 

$31,428 
$31,428 

$0 
$0 

$31,428 
$31,428 

$29,857 
$29,857 

$1,571 
$1,571 

$1,571 
$1,571 

$0 
$0 

$1,571 
$1,571 

$31,428 
$31,428 

3.0 MULTI-MODAL PLANNING & PROGRAMMING 
3.1  Regional Transportation Improvement Program 350 1.6% $27,500 $0 $27,500 $26,125 $1,375 $1,375 $0 $1,375 $27,500 
3.4  Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) Activities 4,000 17.8% $314,280 $225,000 $539,280 $512,316 $26,964 $26,964 $0 $26,964 $539,280 
3.5  Congestion  Management Process 25 0.1% $1,964 $0 $1,964 $1,866 $98 $98 $0 $98 $1,964 
3.10 Public Participation Plan Development 100 0.4% $7,857 $0 $7,857 $7,464 $393 $393 $0 $393 $7,857 
3.11 Community Involvement Planning 900 4.0% $70,713 $0 $70,713 $67,177 $3,536 $3,536 $0 $3,536 $70,713 
3.13 Corridor and Area Planning 2,125 9.5% $166,961 $375,000 $541,961 $514,863 $27,098 $27,098 $0 $27,098 $541,961 

Subtotal: 7,500 33.4% $589,275 $600,000 $1,189,275 $1,129,811 $59,464 $59,464 $0 $59,464 $1,189,275 

4.0 STREET AND HIGHWAY PLANNING 
4.1 Regional Road Impact Fee Activities 100 0.4% $7,857 $0 $7,857 $7,464 $393 $393 $0 $393 $7,857 
4.2 Geographic Information System (GIS) Mgt. 1,500 6.7% $117,855 $0 $117,855 $111,962 $5,893 $5,893 $0 $5,893 $117,855 
4.3 Traffic Forecasting 150 0.7% $11,786 $0 $11,786 $11,197 $589 $589 $0 $589 $11,786 
4.18 RTC Traffic Model Upgrade/Conversion to TransCAD 1,000 4.5% $78,570 $80,000 $158,570 $150,642 $7,929 $7,929 $0 $7,929 $158,571 
4.27 TMRPA Shared Services 150 0.7% $11,786 $120,000 $131,786 $125,197 $6,589 $6,589 $0 $6,589 $131,786 
4.31 Data Collection and Analysis Program 200 0.9% $15,714 $200,000 $215,714 $204,928 $10,786 $10,786 $0 $10,786 $215,714 

Subtotal: 3,100 13.8% $243,568 $400,000 $643,568 $611,390 $32,179 $32,179 $0 $32,179 $643,569 

5.0 PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
5.2 Transit Planning^ 

Subtotal: 
1,000 
1,000 

4.5% 
4.5% 

$78,570 
$78,570 

$700,000 
$700,000 

$778,570 
$778,570 

$683,392 
$683,392 

$95,179 
$95,179 

$0 
$0 

$95,179 
$95,179 

$95,179 
$95,179 

$778,571 
$778,571 

6.0 AIR QUALITY PLANNING 
6.1 Air Quality Modeling/Analysis 150 0.7% $11,786 $0 $11,786 $11,197 $589 $589 $0 $589 $11,786 
6.2 CMAQ Planning 100 0.4% $7,857 $0 $7,857 $7,464 $393 $393 $0 $393 $7,857 
6.3 RTIP/RTP Conformity Analysis 25 0.1% $1,964 $0 $1,964 $1,866 $98 $98 $0 $98 $1,964 

Subtotal: 275 1.2% $21,607 $0 $21,607 $20,527 $1,080 $1,080 $0 $1,080 $21,607 
FY 2022-2023  Anticipated Funding     $3,100,000 

Totals 22,450 100% $1,763,898 $1,700,000 $3,463,898 $3,234,453 $229,445 $134,266 $95,179 $229,445 $3,463,898 
*Local match is either RTC fuel tax or sales tax funds 
^Transit Planning task utilizes both PL funds and FTA TOD Planning funds 



 
  

 

  

 
 

j 

______________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

APPENDIX A 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 

Unified Planning Work Program – FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 29 
May 2021 



      
   

 
 

  
               

   
      

      

   
         

            
      

     
           

          
 

   
 

  
 

   
  

         
         

        
   

         
 

   
   

  
  

        
 

  

   
 

           
  

    
 

______________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

APPENDIX B 
NDOT/RTC Roles and Responsibilities 

The purpose of this statement is to outline the roles and responsibilities of the Nevada 
Department of Transportation (NDOT) and the Regional Transportation Commission of 
Washoe County (RTCWC), as required by 23 CFR Sec.450.314 and is incorporated in the 
Unified Planning Work Program per 23 CFR 450.314. 

I. General Roles & Responsibilities 
RTCWC will perform the transportation planning process for Washoe County and develop 
procedures to coordinate transportation planning activities in accordance with applicable 
federal regulations and guidance. 
The transportation process will, at a minimum, consist of: 

A. Development of an annual Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) that lists and 
describes all transportation planning studies and tasks to be completed during the 
year. 

B. Development and update of a long range, multi-modal metropolitan transportation 
plan, known as the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP). 

C. Development and maintenance of a short-range transportation improvement program 
(TIP). 

D. Financial planning to ensure plans and programs are fiscally constrained within 
anticipated funding levels. 

E. Development of planning studies and system performance monitoring, including 
highway corridor and intersection studies, transit system studies, application of 
advanced computer techniques, and transportation data collection and archiving. 

F. Public outreach to the community throughout the transportation planning process, 
including the electronic dissemination of reports and supporting information on the 
RTCWC’s website, and consideration of public comments. Public outreach activities 
should take into account the needs of persons with limited proficiency in English. 

G. Ensuring low income or minority populations, including the elderly and persons with 
disabilities are not significantly or disproportionately impacted. 

H. Development and implementation of a Congestion Management Process as 
appropriate. 

I. Ensuring plans, projects and programs are consistent with and conform to air quality 
goals of reducing transportation-related emissions and attaining National Ambient Air 
Quality Standards. 

II.  The Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) 

The RTP will be prepared and compiled through a cooperative process between federal 
agencies, the Nevada Department of Transportation, RTCWC (including RTCWC 
in its capacity as the provider of public transportation), the Washoe County 

Unified Planning Work Program – FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 30 
May 2021 



      
   

 
        

 

 
  

            
        

              
         

    
 

   
         

       
 

   
 

 
 

      
        

      
      

   

   
 

  
 

  
  

 
           

           
      

 
 

  
        

  
    

 
    

 

______________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

Health District-Air Quality Management Division (WCHD-AQMD), and the local city and 
county governments in the region. 

Responsibilities of the Regional Transportation Commission 
A. The RTCWC will be responsible for preparing and developing the Regional 

Transportation Plan (20-30 year). The RTP will be converted into a format that will 
allow it to be downloaded from the internet. 

B. The RTCWC may develop an executive summary report for the region that includes 
the key issues facing the area and identifies priority programs and projects. 

C. The RTCWC will provide opportunities for the public and other interested parties to 
provide input during the development of the Regional Transportation Plan, in 
accordance with the Public Participation Plan. The draft of each update to the RTP 
will be made available for public and agency review and comment. Prior to taking 
formal action on the Plan or Plan update, the RTCWC Board will be informed of the 
extent and nature of comments received and the response to such comments. 

D. The RTCWC will, in cooperation with NDOT, develop estimates of future inflation to 
be used to convert project costs and revenues to a “year of expenditure” basis. 

E. The RTCWC will coordinate with the WCHD-AQMD to assess air quality impacts and 
conduct the regional emissions assessment of the RTP. 

F. The RTCWC, acting as the transit agency for Washoe County, will ensure the RTP 
includes information on local bus capital projects that are consistent with the transit 
capital program.  The RTP will also identify future bus needs and services, including 
new routes, service expansion, vehicle needs, and operating financial needs. 

G. The RTCWC will prepare an estimate of local and regional revenues available for debt 
service, street and highway routine maintenance and operations, system preservation 
and highway modernization, facilities, transit and other infrastructure and overhead 
cost and reserves to be expended on transportation projects in Washoe County over 
the 20-30 year time frame of the plan. 

Responsibilities of the Nevada Department of Transportation 
A. The Nevada Department of Transportation (NDOT) will provide the following 

information and data in support of developing the RTP: 
1. An estimate of federal funds expected to be available over the 20-30 year time 

frame of the plan for highway and transit programs. This estimate of funds will 
be provided at a time mutually agreed upon by the RTCWC and NDOT so that 
the fiscal limits of the RTP can be determined before project prioritization begins. 

2. A list of projects in Washoe County, developed in cooperation with the RTCWC, 
to be undertaken by NDOT over the 20-30 year time frame of the plan using 
Federal program funds reserved in the State for use anywhere in the State.  
The state’s regionally significant project list will be provided at a time mutually 
agreed upon by the RTCWC and NDOT so that air quality conformity analysis 
can be performed at the appropriate time in the course of the RTP’s 
development. 

Unified Planning Work Program – FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 31 
May 2021 



      
   

 
 

         
  

      
          

 
        

   
   

 
         

   
       

      
    

   
      

  
   

  
           

  
  

 
    

             
              
           

       
      

   
 

   
  

   
  

 
   
         

  

______________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

3. A list of projects in Washoe County for which funds have been earmarked or 
otherwise designated in federal transportation legislation. 

4. An estimate of state funds expected to be expended on transportation 
projects in Washoe County over the 20-30 year time frame of the plan.  In the 
interests of public information, and to assist the RTCWC in demonstrating 
the fiscal feasibility of the Plan, NDOT will also provide information as to how 
these expenditures relate to the state transportation revenues available after 
allowing for the cost of maintenance, operations, debt service, administration 
and other calls on these fund sources. 

5. Traffic count data and other performance indicators for state roads in the Region. 
B. For those federal program funds intended to be distributed between various entities 

or regions within the State, NDOT will either provide the basis for the allocation 
between areas as defined by Law, or will work cooperatively with the RTCWC and 
other jurisdictions to establish mutually agreed formulae for the allocation between 
areas of such funds for forecasting and financial planning purposes. 

NDOT will provide information on projects to be undertaken in Washoe County using transit 
or other federal program funds allocated to non-urbanized areas of the State, and will consult 
with the RTCWC on the basis for selecting such projects. 

III.  Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 
The TIP will be prepared and compiled through a cooperative process between federal 
agencies, NDOT, the RTCWC (including the RTCWC in its capacity as the provider 
of public transportation), and the local city and county governments in the region. 

Responsibilities of the Regional Transportation Commission 
A. The RTCWC will be responsible for preparing and developing the Transportation 

Improvement Program (5 year) for the region. The TIP will be converted into a format 
that will allow it to be downloaded from the internet. The RTCWC will maintain the 
TIP by tracking changes to projects (schedule, scope and cost) made through the 
amendments and administrative action process.  The TIP will include an estimate of 
anticipated local funds to be expended on all projects identified in the TIP. 

B. The RTCWC, in consultation with NDOT and local city and county governments, shall 
develop the list of locally-sponsored transportation projects to be included in the TIP. 

1. In the case of the Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Program (or successor 
program of similar intent), the RTCWC shall follow the Transportation Conformity 
Plan process and consult with the WCHD-AQMD and other agencies as 
appropriate in the development of the list of projects to be included in the TIP. 

2. In the case of the Transportation Alternatives Program (or successor program 
of similar intent), the RTCWC shall also consult with all eligible project sponsors in 
the development of the list of projects to be included in the TIP. 

Unified Planning Work Program – FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 32 
May 2021 



      
   

          
   

  
  

  
   

 
 

      
 
 

       
         

 
        

 
         

           
       

  
            

            
            

        
        

           
       

              
          

     
    

  
  

   
  

   
      

     
    

   
 

 

______________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

C. The RTCWC, as the provider of public transportation services, shall develop the list 
of transit projects to be included in the TIP. 
1. In the urbanized area, the RTCWC shall consult with not-for-profit agencies and 

other providers of specialized transportation and human services, in accordance 
with the Coordinated Public Transit-Human Services Plan. 

2. For non-urbanized area transit programs, the RTCWC shall consult with NDOT 
and other providers of transportation services to the non-urbanized parts of the 
region. 

D. The RTCWC will develop an estimate of anticipated local funds to be expended on 
transit projects identified in the TIP.  In the interests of public information and to 
assist in demonstrating the fiscal feasibility of the TIP, the RTCWC will also 
document how these expenditures relate to the local revenues available for transit 
after allowing for the cost of maintenance, operations, debt service, administration 
and other calls on these fund sources. 

E. The RTCWC will provide information on proposed TIP amendments and 
administrative modifications relating to projects sponsored by the RTCWC or 
local entities. Amendments and administrative modifications will include a project 
description that provides sufficient detail to explain the proposed changes to the 
RTCWC board, as well as a justification for the change. 

Responsibilities of the Nevada Department of Transportation 
A. NDOT will prepare an initial list of NDOT-sponsored projects to be included in each 

new TIP. This list will be based on the current TIP and an assessment of which 
projects will be obligated for funding before the end of the current federal fiscal year. 

B. NDOT will provide information on proposed TIP amendments and modifications 
relating to projects sponsored by NDOT. Amendments will include a project 
description that provides sufficient detail to allow the proposed changes to be 
explained to the RTCWC Board, as well as a justification for the change. 

C. NDOT will provide a list of projects obligated during the federal fiscal year at the 
end of each program year. The annual list of obligated projects should include both 
highway and transit projects and should identify the fund source and the amount 
obligated in accordance with 23 CFR 450.332. 

D. NDOT will provide, for each federal fund source, the revenues available (including 
both unobligated funds carried forward from prior years and the amount appropriated 
during the fiscal year), the total amount obligated, any other deductions and the 
balance of funds remaining at the end of the fiscal year. 

IV.  Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) 
A. NDOT will develop a  f our - year  STIP including projects in the areas of each MPO 

and in the rural regions of the State and will be responsible for securing the approval 
of the STIP by the United States Department of Transportation. 

B. The TIP, as developed by the RTCWC, will be incorporated into the STIP 
without change, directly or by reference. 

Unified Planning Work Program – FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 33 
May 2021 



      
   

   
  

 
  

 
     

        
 

        
  

 
   

  
 

  
         

   
  

  
  

  

  

 
     

 
     

  
 

 
    

 
        

       
           

 
    

       
     

          
         

 
______________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

C. NDOT, in consultation with the RTCWC and the other MPOs in the State, shall 
develop procedures for the modification and amendment of the STIP.  NDOT 
shall be responsible for notifying the RTCWC of the effective date of 
modifications and the approval date of amendments. 

V.  Public Transportation Planning 
A. The RTCWC, acting as the transit agency for the Region, will ensure the RTP and TIP 

include all transit projects (both capital and operating) that are funded by Federal 
program funds. 

B. The RTCWC will consult with NDOT to ensure the RTP and TIP include information 
on transit projects in the non-urbanized parts of the region that are funded by Federal 
program funds. 

C. The RTCWC will include in the RTP information on the transit system and will outline 
the objectives of the RTCWC in respect of the various types and modes of public 
transportation in the region. 

VI. Air Quality Planning 
A. The preparation of a new or revised RTP will be coordinated with the State Air Quality 

Implementation Plan (SIP) and the transportation demand and system management 
(TDM/TSM) measures. 

B. In accordance with the Clean Air Act and the U.S. EPA's conformity regulations (40 
C.F.R. Part 51), the RTCWC, acting as the MPO, makes an air quality conformity 
determination on any new or revised RTP prior to Plan approval.  Any such new or 
revised RTP is also provided to the FHWA and the FTA with a request that these 
federal agencies approve the conformity finding. 

VII.  Public Participation Program 
A. The RTCWC will develop and maintain a Public Participation Plan that sets out the 

procedures to include the public and interested parties in the development of the 
Regional Transportation Plan and Transportation Improvement Program and other 
parts of the planning process, to seek public input and comment, and to inform 
decision makers of the extent and nature of comments received and the response to 
such comments 

B. The RTCWC will review, evaluate, and update its public participation plan at least 
every four years. 

C. The RTCWC will maintain a list of interested organizations and individuals who will 
receive notices of MPO plans, programs and projects. 

D. The RTCWC will work to ensure that low-income, minority and transit dependent 
areas are afforded an adequate opportunity to participate in the transportation 
planning process, receive a fair share of the transportation improvement benefits and 
do not endure a disproportionate transportation burden. 

E. The RTCWC will maintain its website to provide clear and concise information on the 
transportation planning process and provide an opportunity to download reports and 
documents. This will include developing project and study summaries, 

Unified Planning Work Program – FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 34 
May 2021 



      
   

              
      

 

 
             

      
   

          
     
         

   
 

    
   

   
   

    
 

    
   
   
   

  
 

 
 

   
   

 
       

    
 

  
  

  
 

 
 

  
          

 
 

______________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

converting reports into a pdf or text format, and maintaining a list of available 
documents. The website will provide links to other associated organizations and 
agencies. 

VIII.  Fiscal/Financial Planning 
A. NDOT will provide the RTCWC with up-to-date fiscal and financial information and 

projections on the statewide and regional transportation improvement programs to 
the extent practicable. 

B. This will include anticipated federal funding resources by federal aid category by 
year for the four years covered by the TIP and by five-yearly intervals for the 20-30 
year time frame of the RTP for the i n c  l  u s  i o  n  in the TIP and RTP financial charts. 

C. For each federal program for which funds are sub-allocated to Washoe County, NDOT 
will provide an annual statement identifying: 

1.  Unobligated funds brought forward from the previous year; 
2.  Funds appropriated during the year; 
3.  Fund obligated during the year and any adjustments thereto; 
4.  Unobligated funds balance. 

D. For each federal transit program for which funds are allocated to Washoe County, the 
RTCWC will provide an annual statement identifying: 

1.  Unobligated funds brought forward from the previous year; 
2.  Funds appropriated during the year; 
3.  Funds obligated during the year and any adjustments thereto; 
4.  Unobligated funds balance. 

E. NDOT will notify the RTCWC when the anticipated cost of a project, regardless of 
funding category, has changed in accordance with the agreed upon TIP/STIP 
amendment and administrative action process. 

IX.  Performance Measurement and the Management of Congestion 
A. In developing the RTP and TIP, RTCWC will incorporate the national goals, measures 

and standards of system performance established under the provisions of MAP-21. 
B. RTCWC will coordinate with NDOT in the establishment of multimodal transportation 

system performance targets for the region. These will reflect national goals and 
standards as applied to the circumstances and priorities of the region. 

C. RTCWC will cooperate with NDOT to collect data and conduct system performance 
monitoring.  RTCWC will report on progress towards meeting system performance 
targets as part of the biennial development of major TIP updates and will assist NDOT 
as needed in meeting state reporting requirements under MAP-21. 

D. To address the national goal of reducing congestion, RTCWC will gather and analyze 
data to define the extent and duration of congestion in the region, to identify the causes 
of congestion and to identify congestion management strategies. 

E. As part of the Congestion Management Process (CMP), the RTCWC will develop 
implementation activities in coordination with NDOT to address congestion and other 
performance issues, and will include priority projects in the RTP and TIP. 

Unified Planning Work Program – FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 35 
May 2021 



      
   

 

              
        

   

 
                 

              
  

  
          

       
    

 

______________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Item 5 ATTACHMENT

Amendments to this Document 

This Statement on Transportation Planning may be amended from time to time to coincide 
with annual UPWP approval as jointly deemed necessary or in the best interests of all parties, 
including Federal transportation agencies. 

Effective Date 
This Statement will be effective after it has been endorsed by the RTCWC as part of the 
UPWP, and as soon as that UPWP has been approved by NDOT and the relevant Federal 
transportation agencies. 

No Limitation on Statutory Authority 
Nothing contained in this Statement is intended to or shall limit the authority or 
responsibilities assigned to signatory organizations under Nevada law, federal law, local 
ordinance, or interlocal agreement. 

Unified Planning Work Program – FY 2022 – FY 2023 Page 36 
May 2021 



 
 

  
 

  
 

  
   
    
  
 

 
 

  
  

  
 

 
 

 
 

 

TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

MEETING DATE:  February 2, 2022 AGENDA ITEM 6 

To: Citizens Multimodal Advisory Committee 

From: Kevin Verre 
Assistant Chief, Multi-Modal and Program Development 
Nevada Department of Transportation (NDOT) 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Acknowledge receipt of a presentation on Nevada Department of Transportation (NDOT) process used 
from the One Nevada Plan to arrive at the current Statewide Transportation Improvement Program 
(STIP). 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

Nevada Department of Transportation staff will provide an update regarding the process used from the 
One Nevada Plan to arrive at the current Statewide Transportation Improvement Program.   



 
 

  
 

  
 

  
   
    
  
 

 
 

     
  

 
 

  
          
              

  
   

   
   

 
  

 
 

  
 

TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

MEETING DATE:  February 2, 2022 AGENDA ITEM 7 

To: Citizens Multimodal Advisory Committee 

From: Kevin Verre 
Assistant Chief, Multi-Modal and Program Development 
Nevada Department of Transportation (NDOT) 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Acknowledge receipt of a presentation on the Mt. Rose Highway Corridor Study. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

The Mt. Rose Corridor Plan will define a vision for future Mt. Rose Highway corridor improvements 
from Veteran’s Parkway to Douglas Fir Drive. As fast-paced development has occurred along Mt. 
Rose Highway, numerous requests and concerns have been received by NDOT and other agencies 
for enhancements to the corridor. In addition, this segment of highway forms a transition from an 
urban setting on the east to a more suburban and rural feel on the west. Mt. Rose Highway also 
serves as a primary travel route from Reno to Incline Village and the Lake Tahoe North Shore, 
resulting in a mixture of local commuters and tourists utilizing the roadway. 

Through this Corridor Plan, NDOT, in conjunction with local agencies such as the Washoe County 
Regional Transportation Commission (RTC), City of Reno, and Washoe County, as well as the 
general public, will develop a long-term vision on functionality and philosophy in which new 
enhancements should accommodate.  


	CMAC Item 4 - Sustainable Transporation Committee.pdf
	BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

	CMAC Item 5 - UPWP.pdf
	BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

	CMAC Item 5 - FY 2022-FY 2023 UPWP_Amendment1.pdf
	1.0 INTRODUCTION
	2.0 PLANNING EMPHASIS AREAS
	2.1 Implementing MAP-21 and the FAST Act
	2.2 Regional Models of Cooperation
	2.3 Ladders of Opportunity

	3.0 ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE/TITLE VI
	4.0 TRANSPORTATION PLANNING PRIORITIES FOR FY 2022 – FY 2023
	4.1 2050 Regional Transportation Plan Guiding Principles & Goals
	4.2 Public Participation
	4.3 Performance Based Planning
	4.5 Air Quality

	5.0 WORK ELEMENTS AND TASK DESCRIPTIONS
	FY22-23 UPWP Spreadsheet_Tracking_Amendment 1.pdf
	A


	CMAC Item 6 - NDOT STIP Process.pdf
	BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

	CMAC Item 7 - NDOT Mt. Rose Highway Corridor Study.pdf
	BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION




